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Item 6  Arts Inc Heretaunga, 2020 Hawke's Bay Arts Festival Report
2020 Arts Festival Contract for Service Attachment 2
Contract for Services HASTINGS

One year contraci for the delivery of the Hawkes Bay Arts Festival 2020

Delivered by Arts Inc. Heretaunga, in parinership with HDC and Toitol Hawkes Bay Arts and
Events Centre

One year contract valued at $120,000 of financial support

The Parties
Hastings District Council (Buyer)

207 Lyndon Road East

Hastings 4156
and
Arts Herelaunga Incorporated (Arts Inc. Heretaunga) (Supplier)

106 Russell St South

Hastings

The Contract

Agreement

The Buyer appoints the Supplier to deliver the services describad in this Contract and the Supplier
accepts that appointment. This Contract sets out the Parties’ rights and obligations.

The documents forming this Contract are:

l

1. This page Page 1

2. Contract Details and Description of Services Schedule 1

3. Standard Terms and Conditions Schedule 2

4. Key Performance indicators (KPis) Schedule 3

5. HBAF & Toitol Partnership (MOU) Schedule 4
How to read this Contract

1. Together the above documents form the whole Contract.

2. Any Supplier terms and conditions do not apply.

3. Clause numbers refer to clauses in Schedule 2.

4. Words starting with capital letters have a special meaning. The special meaning is stated in the
Definitions section at clause 17 (Schedule 2),

Acceptance
In signing this Contract each Party acknowledges that it has read and agrees to be bound by it.

For and on we Buyer: For and on If of the Supplier:
— Q
fagnature) . (signaturs)

name: ,Dénnise Eiém7 name: Andy Heast
. |Acting Group Manager, Community . Chairperson, Arts Inc, Heretaunga
position: | Wellbeing and Services position:
date: \@ \ 3 l 300 date: \6\‘\\207.3
8
Version: HRPM REF: Buy.r'v
Supplier S
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Schedule 1

Contract Details and Description of Services

Start Date 010772020 Reforoncs Schadule 2 clause 1

End Date 30/06/2021 Rataronce Schedule 2 clause 1

Contract Buyer's Contract Manager  Supplier's Contract Manasmer

8 Schadula 2

Managers . Kow:Carter  Pitsch Led
Community Grants Advisor Fastival Director

207 Lyndon Road East 106 Russell St South
06 871 5048 021152 70 83
kevc@hdc.govinz pitsch@hbal co.nz

Supplier's address

Addresses for Buyer's address
_NO!I-CES For the attention of: Kev Carter

8 Schadula 2 - i !
c.c. Contract Manager Kev Carter Festival Director
Delivery address: 207 Lyndon Road East 106 Russell St South

Pitsch Leiser

Postal address: Private Bag 9002, 0211527083
Hastings 4156

Fax: ‘

Emall: 'kevo@hde.govinz | pitsch@hbaf.co.nz

Supplier's OPTIONAL Approved Personnel

Approved
Personnel

el ¥ oohiedals?

ol 25

(D

Supplier
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Item 6  Arts Inc Heretaunga, 2020 Hawke's Bay Arts Festival Report
2020 Arts Festival Contract for Service Attachment 2

Contract tor Sgrvices varn™ e M L0 LR L SONQ

Description of Services

Context

Hastings District Coundil is continuing its established relationship with Arts Inc, Heretaunga, where funding
will be provided by the council in return for the delivery activities and services which will be undertaken by
the organisation to achieve the agreed outcomes,

For the pravious five years the HBAF has been predominately Jocated in a pop up venue based in
Havelock North. Tha 2020 festival will be focused within the Hastings CBD and utilise existing HDC
vanues including the newly opened Toitol Hawkes Bay Arts and Events Centre. Tha 2020 fastival will be
jointly delivered by Toitoi and Arts Inc Heretaunga. By not having {o pay for a farge pop up venue the
HBAF are removing circa 100k from the festival axpenses.

The HBAFs is a regional festival although the majority of the fastival will be focused within the Hastings
CBD, as in pravious years other venuas will be used across Hastings District and Hawke's Bay

The funding in this contract is in addition to the ‘Community Arts Development’ Contract currently worlh
$178,000 per year, which also go towards o supporting kay siaff at Arts Inc Heretaunga that also support
the delivery of the festival. The 2020 festival support has remained at $120,000 for 2020 and a full festival
review and partnership debrief will be planed post festival, prior to future Ads Festivals.

‘ HDC Understands that thera will be addifional costs and uncertainties in bringing the Festival hub info the
Hastings CBD including remaving the festival garden and hespitality offerings and the lack of international
acls and that this will have a negalive impact on the Festivals incoma. Partnering with Teitoi aims fo ofiset
these additional costs proviging savings including the elimination of expensive temporary venue costs. Due
to cavid 19 there will also be no international acts and associated costs and income.

HDC will continue to support the HBAF by providing a Hastings based venue.

Description of Services:

Arts Inc, Heretaunga agrees 10 operate, produce and deliver the Hawkes Bays Arts Festival 2020 in
partnership with Toltoi Hawkes bay Arts and Events Centre and accordance with all appropriate councll
policies and deliverables within this contract to a high standard

High Level Deliverables:

Arts Inc. Heretaunga will pariner with Toitol Arts and Events Cantre to deliver the Hawke's Bay Arls Festival
betwean the 12™ and 26" October 2020. The 2020 festival will be mainly based within the Hastings CBD and
will utilise existing HDC Venuas where possible, including Todol Hawkes Bay Arts and Events Centre, Arts Inc |
Heretaunga will deliver the services as specified in Schedule 3 and meet any and all requirements as agreed

within this contract for service. Arts in Heretaunga will pay for all HDC venues and services including Toitoi |
arts and events centre

Arts Inc Heretaunga will deliver and support many prionty areas set out in Toi-t0, Hastings District Councils
Arts and Culture Strategy, set out in Schedule 3

High Level Outcomes

The work of Arts Inc. Herstaunga contributes to the currant and/or future need of our communily by providing |
I good quality local Public Services, Le. services or projects that are efficient, effective, and appropriate 1o |
present and anticipated future circumstances.

‘ Specific code of conduct / health & safety / legisiative requirement

1. The supplier must ensure that they comply with adl relevant NZ Health and Safety Legistation and
Codes of Practice.

2. In order 1o satisfy the Buyer that appropriate maeasures are in place 1o manage Health and Safety
risks, the Suppler shall provide the Buyer with a copy of their current Policies and Procedures for the
Management of Health and Safety of Employees, Visitors and Contractors.

3. Additionally, the Supplier may be subject 10 an annual audit by the Buyer (or independamt party) in
order 1o verify that appropriate health and safety measures ara in place, All reasonable
recommendations for improvement of Health and Safety that may result from an audit shall be
implemanted by tha Supplier in a timaely manner,

(.}x
Version: HRPM REF. B -
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Item 6  Arts Inc Heretaunga, 2020 Hawke's Bay Arts Festival Report
2020 Arts Festival Contract for Service Attachment 2

Contrnct for Sarvices Grvernmant Moos Cararan BIAS 2na Editian

Supplier's Report to: Type of report Due date

Reporting
Requirements Wionthiy yersl updeie

Manthly leading up to

Referonce Schodule 2 he svent
GRS Contract Manager  Year-end report against KPis 20/0172021
01/01/2018 - 3112/2020
Annual financial accounts
01/01/2019 - 31/12/2020 31/03/2020
01/01/2020 - 31/12/2020 31/03/2021

mount payabis
d, Expenses and Daily

The Supplier's Fees will be calculated as follows:

Fixed Fee

A fixed Fee of $120.000.00 (excluding GST)

Underwrite

Unlike In previous years HDC is not entering into any underwrils agresment
Profit Share

In the event the event makas a profit, Arls Inc Herstaunga agrees lo pay Haslings District
Council 50% of the profit made from the Hawkes Bay Arts Festival, 1o 8 maximum fee of
§120,000.00 (excluding GST).

In addition, the Council will.
*  Assign the HOC Events Manager to act as the singte point of contact for the
Event Organisation
« Provide Public Relations and marketing suppor, including exposure on
appropriate HDC marketing channels

Expenses No Expenses are payabla.

‘ A_ng‘ancej No Daily Alliowances are payable,

Invoices B The Supplier must send the Buyer an invoice for the Charges al the following times:
A S On the following dates subject to complotion of the relevant Dellverables/Milestones.

Amount due
Deliverable/Milestone Due date (exc GST)

Signed Agreement and invoice 20/07/2020 $120,000.00
Agreed upon final programme
Al HDC venues and public spaces booked and confirmed.

Total (exc GST) $120,000.00 .

Address for Buyer's address
invoices | .

S ESRSATSRENNOHN For the attention of: | Kev Carter, Community Grants Advisor
3 Physical address: 1207 Lyndon Road East

Postal address: : Privale Bag 9002, Haslings 4156
Email: \ keve@hdc govt.nz

Version: HRPM REF m
S
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Item 6

2020 Arts Festival Contract for Service

Arts Inc Heretaunga, 2020 Hawke's Bay Arts Festival Report

Attachment 2

Comrect for Servites G

Insurance

Changes to
Schedule 2:and
additional
clausels

Pane 5ol 14

INSURANCE: (clause 8.1 Schedule 2)

It is the Supplier's responsibility to ensure its nsks of doing business are adequataly
covered, whather by insurance or otherwise. The Buyer does not require any specific
insurance under this Contract. Specific Council venues may have differant insurance
requirements.

Schedule 2 of this Contract is amended as follows:

6 The Contractual Relationship (Clarification to clause 6.3)

In regards to section 6.3 regarding permission to transfer rights or obligations, under the
Health and Safety at Work Act 2015, neither the Buyer or the Supplier can transfer any
legal Hsalth and Safety obligations to another party,

13 Confidential information (amendment to clause 13.1 ¢)

If the use or disclosure is required by law under the Local Government Cfficial Information
& Meetings Act 1987 (LGOIMA), the Privacy Act 1993, and any other obligations imposed
by law. A LGOIMA request provides the ability to request access to official information
from loca! authorities and such requests must be considered the on the basis of the
criteria within that Act, The Buyer will consult with the Supplier if the information
requested Is considered to be confidential or commercially sensitive.

Schadule 3 (KPI)
Schedule 4 (MOU)

Version: HRPM REF:
Suppli
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Arts Inc Heretaunga, 2020 Hawke's Bay Arts Festival Report

Attachment 2

Comtract tor Services . o

Schedule 3
Key Performance Indicators

1| Arts Inc. 1.1 The event offers a 1.1.1 3 days of performances at Hastings Schools o

Heretaunga diverse 112 3 Weekend shows for families

1o deliver the and schedule of 1.1.3 16 evening performances at Toitol

avent to an events across the 1.1.4 5 unch time parformances at Toitol

operationally Hastings District 115 3 Cost effective and accessible community art expenences in the

high which includes a Hastings CBD

standard minimum of 11.6 1 large scale opening event clearly promoled as a Hastings District
Council funded event at Toitoi

1.1.7 5 Cosl effective and assessable community art experiences in Havelock
North

1.1.8 A supplementary Readers and Writars programmae is coordinated in

with the HB Readers and Writers Charitable Trust
12 Ansinc. Heretaunga 1.2.1  All relevant HDC consents and regulatory requirements are adhered to.
complies with all 122  The event Health and Safety Plan shall be submitied to Hastings District
regulatory Council at least one month 10 the event for review and comment
requirements 123 Ans Inc, Herelaunga provides appropriate HDC staff, or contractors with
including Liquor access to all venues and parts of the festival as required for the purpose
licencing, food safety, of monitoring the compliance of all regulatory requirements.
health and safety, 124  Regular operations meatings as required between the parlies will be
waste management, cocrdinated by Arts Inc. Heretaunga to ensura that the regulatory
noise and any other requirements are being met.
as deemed necessary
by HDC
1.3 | Al Councll Venues, 1.31 Al Councdl Public Spaces, parks elc. are returned to their original state
Public Spaces, parks as per individual agreements and the cost of reinstatement is the
olc. are booked, paid of Arts Inc.
for and used in 1.3.2 Al Council venues are booked, paid for and used as pur their
accordance with the agreements, terms, conditions and any and all additional cost accrued
HOC Service Level are the responsibility of Arts Inc. Heretaunga
Agreement for hire
2| Arts inc. 21 Arsinc Heretaunga 211  The HDC Haslings Heart of Hawkes Bay logo is to be used across ail
Heretaunga HDC the marketing collateral. You will also be required to use ather counc
works in and Toitol as a where riate (ie correct venue logos)
parinership pariner in all 212  Ars Inc. Haretaunga allows HDC rights 1o place signage at the event as
with other appropriate marketing mutually agread
organisafion 4 Cotmunicalion 213  Ans inc Heretaunga will usa tha Toitol, Hastings City Ar Gabery,
5 across the collateral and " z F
b including Hastings Libranes logos when using the appropriate venue
including media
HOC to communications
achieve 2.2  Arslinc. Heretaunga 221 | Ars Inc. Heretaunga allows HDC to leverage its association with the
mutually allows HDC nghts of event including writing media releases promoting our involvement and
aligned association with the providing content such as images where appiicable (still and video)
oulcomes evenl which can ba used post-event by HDC 1o promote the district. Aris Inc.
and Haralaunga provides content which allows HDC to activate their
racognises involvement such as images and, whare appropriate, access (0
HDC as an performers for promational activity. All media releases by HDC which
event partner mention the event must be signed off by Arts Inc. Heretaunga and all
media releases by Arts Inc. Heretaunga referencing HDC support must
be gigned off by HDC.

222  Ads Inc. Heretaunga allows HDC rights to promote other events and
services al and the event as mutual :

223  Ars inc. Herataunga supplies HDC with the following tickets for their
sole use:
4x premium tickets 1o one performance of each separate act and an
additional 4x premium tickets to the Festival opening night {8x tickets in
1olal 1o that show). These lickets must be pre-booked by HDC no later
than 72 hours bafore the ghow.

2.2.4  Opportunity to purchase further tickets at the mutually agreed
concession rate of 15% off the full adult rate, limited to ten tickets per
show.

Version: HRPM REF: Buyar @
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Attachment 2

225 Anamount of tickets for selected shows as mutually agreed for the

purpose of sociai media promotions on HDC Facebook page/s.

23 Joint 231  Ars Inc. Heretaunga will, wherever possible, refer to Hastings District
Communications Councll as a8 major funder and/or supporter in press releases and
through its own publications (print and on-line). it will, under a no
surprises policy, advise Council (via the Events Manager) of any
communications issues as they occur, Major announcements, as
agreed, Wil be notified to the Council communications team within 2
time-frame that allows an appropriate Councll spokesperson (o provide
commaent
24  Arsinc Heretaunga 241 A comprehensive marketing plan is developed in consultation with HDC.
demonstrates 242 Evidence of positive media coverage i coilated and presented in the
Innovative and sound st-event mance
marketing and 243  Atleast ona free promotional activity Is undertaken in the Hastings CEBD
communication plans 10 promote the event, not Including the programmes at the Hastings City
o maximize Art Gallery or Hastings District Libraries.
opportunities for 244  Promotion of Hastings District as a destination is evident on the event
posilive media webslite/Facebook, including prominent finks to the
coverage inside and ; nz site,
outside of the region  "235  Promotion of Hastings and Havelock North i-SITES as the primary
and to grow the event accommodation service and tourism Information sarvice provider will be
done where possible
25 Arsinc Herctaunga 2,51  HBAF works with existing events 1o minimize disruption and to add
coordinates the avent valué across the region
with other avents and Evants which need spacial consideration and coordination Include:
organizations - The Hastings 'Fringe in the Stings’
- Toitoi reguiar booking and other Toitol shows
252  HBAF works with existing organizations 1o add value and promote the
aris sector across the region including:
o Waiohiki Arts Village
+ Kairunga Creative Hub
* Local Galleries
s Local Ant Venues
253 HBAF supporis the Toitoi creative learning program by:
*  Providing mentoring opportunilies for students
* Providing opportunities to meet and greet artists
¢ Supporting the “sharing of work' show
Arts Inc. 3.1 Theposteventreport 3.1.1  Express our unigue regional identity
Heretaunga will outline how the | 3.1.2  Uptfi the profile of the creative practice In the region
will meet all festival meets the 3.1.3  Improve visibility of our creatives on a national level
reporting prioriies setup inthe 314 Grow youth participation
requirements Tokt0 Strategy 315  Uphold and grow creative knowledge
|| including 316 Create pathways for professional development for practising creatives
producing a 3.1.7 _ Enable sustainable work practices
post event 3.1.8  Secure Sustainable resourcing
performance 319 Embedded into regional
report "";"‘ 32  The posteventreport  3.1.1 | Event paricipation breakdown with the number of show antrants, the
f;gc“" ":: will report in the number of support personnel, and the estimated number of spectators
oo by following key event 322 | The parcentags of total aveni participants (show entrants and
\dentified information spactators) from infoutside the Hawke's Bay
323 Feedback from participants and stakeholders demonstrating a high leve!
of satisfaction with the evenl, the venues, Its organisation and with
racommendalions
324  Evidence of positive media coverage
325 Performance delivered against KPIs
326 Indicative post event financial repont
327  Successes, issues and recommendations for future events
328  Evidence hat the HBAF provided opportunities for local business to
thrive
3.3  Financlal 3.3.1  Ars inc Heretaunga spends HDC funds appropriately and in the best
accountability interests of the community
332  Afullfinancial report for Arts Inc Herstaunga, mcluding the final festival
accounts is due at the end of this financial year
333  Ansinc Herg provide all retevant information and takes an active
_part in a full review of the future of the HBAF
(S
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KIA ORA,
WELCOME

c&@j@ ﬁ@

PROPERTY PEOPLE COMMERCIAL  OPERATIONS PARTNERS

Jmiment
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Hawke's Bay Airport Ltd Annual Report 2020 Attachment 1

Today Hawke's Bay Alrport is the third busiest airport in the North
Istand and plays an essential role in connecting the region’s people

and produce with the wider national and ntemational econdmy.
The Hawke's Bay Region stretches from Wairoa in the north to
Walpukurau in the 5outh and at the 2018 New Zealand census had
a population of $65,368

Hawke's Bay has a long and proud history. Maor first settled here
around 1250-1200 AD and today represent over 26% of the region’s

population. The region's largest iwi (tabe} is Ngati Kshungunu

OWNERSHIP
AND GOVERNANCE

nance sits with the Board of Directors of Hawke's Bay Awport
{HBAL), which is responsible for t gc and overall

y of the organisation. Directors are appomnted by the company's
shareholgers; Napier Gty Council (26%), Hastings District Council {24%)

and the Crown (50%)

1

Lol

The Board has four Directors: two appointed by the C
shareholders and two appointed by the (

oW
The Board meets regularly with management to review the company’s
performance, and provides quarterly, half-yearly and annual busi
performance reports to shareholders

HAVFES RAYARPCHT LT - ANNLIA FEPORT X500 - 5
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CHAIR'S REPORT

y
ang economic disasters = ng more

10 the challenges of COVID-19

It would be an understatement to say Hawke's Bay
Airport has been “confronted™ by a number

of testing events over the past 12 months -

with the need to reset the terminal reconstruction
progect followng the voluntary administration

of Arrow Limited in 2019, the unexpected departure
of letstar from regional samvices in November,
pandemic and lockdown impacts since March 2020,
and the recent announcement by Auways

NZ of their intention to withdraw staff from the
airpont control tower,

In every instance the HBAL has nsen 1o these
challenges with an &ye on recovery and the
preservation of shareholder walue. | am enormously
proud of the work and dedication of every single
staff member in the Hawke's Bay team, including
our 31 volunteer ambassadors, The year-end result
was impacted by a significant asset wnte off which
resulted in a deficit; however, | am mindful of

the fact that no matter what the challenge, our
airport has continued to operate safely without
degradation of senice to airport passengers,
tenants, community stakeholders and visitors.

Dur focus is now on the future and diversification
of revenue streams. The termenal rebuild (s due to
be completed in March 2021, presenting & number
of opportunities for new offerings that reflect the

umequie character of Hawke's Bay.

We are proud to have signed a joint venture
agreement with Waipukurau-based lines company
Centralines, with the bold aim of becoming

New Zealand's first carbon neutral airport through
the development of a large scale solar farm.

As part of the region’s key infrastruc
gateway asset that has served the Hawke's Bay Community since 1935

Along with our community the orear

ture, Hawke s

v Alrport 1S & proud

isation has weathered both natural

so than in 2020 as we have respanded

Our commercial development activities are focused
on plans to develop a property precindt, and we are
working hard to progress a high quality sustainable
transport and logistics hub to support the region.
There 15 much to look forward to.

In ciosing {'d like to thank our Chief Executive,
Stuart Ainslie and fellow Directors for ther
support and ledership during 2019/2020. I'd also
like to specifically acknowiedge the significant
contribution of retiring Chair Tony Parter, and
outgoing board member Taine Randell for the
sharp minds, commercial acumen and innovation
they brought to the boardroom. We also warmiy
welcome Sarah Reo and lon Nichols to the

HBAL Board

We have a strong team in place for 2020/2021 with
diversity of thought and experience, which vall hold
us in good stead for the months ahead, We look
forward to working with cur communities, partners
and stakeholders to provide a safe, sustainable
and best-in-class gateway for our region.

Chatr
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CH
OFFICER'S REPOR

- EXECUTIVE

COVID-19 has reinforced the need for HBAL to diversify our revenue
to minimise risk and create resilience with a significant focus on
property development and renewable energy

As we venturad into july 2019 the airport business
had come off the back of unprecedented growth
reaching record passenger numbers, Littl d we
know how siznificant the impacts of the COVID19
pandemic would be on the aviation industry globally
This evemt has had a segnificant material effect

on this year's financial performance

In fact, dunng Apnl 2020 there were just 149
passenget mavements for Hawke's Bay Airport
The numbers climbed slowly by year end to
approximately 50% of pre-COVID schedules, with
annualised passengsr numbers of 541,000 putting
our base growth back to 2015 levels,

As a result, this year will be the first year that
Hawke's Bay Airport has reported a net [oss after
tax, with a final result of $1.013m noting that this

includes & weite down for the old tesminal of 51.371m.

Despte the '.ngr"uf'mr': 1meact on revenue | am
pleasad 10 report strong progress against our
strategic plan with a continued focus on building
resilience and revenue diversification to provide
added value to our shareholders and the
Hawke's Bay community,

Progressing the t2rminal expansion under our
subs:diary Hawke's Bay Arpart Construction we are
delighted 10 have opened Stage 2 on schedule, and
are also well on our way to finalising the terminal
in early 2021 despite a few weeks of COVID-related

setbacks. This stage of the project 1s one we feel

will be wamiy welcomed by the regicn especsally

as the project was first conceptualised approximately
five years ago

Dunng the reporting penod we compéeted our

first biannual Airpont Service Quality Surveys which
are administered by our amanng team of alrport
ambassadors. Along with a significant number

of positives, two areas we strive to improve are our
car park-1o-gate and airpornt shopping expenences.
We are confident that both areas will be addressed
n the coming year on the compietion of cur new
terminal, forecourt and retall offerings

Our people are central to the delivery of our
mission to deliver a safe, sustainable and customer
centric airport expenence, and we are giad to
welcome onboard our new Fire Team to HBAL after
successfully completing the insource of these
previously outsourced cnucal roles.

I'd like to thank Task Protection Services for thesr
service and commitment o ensure the comtinued
safety of our airport for the past 25 years

| 202

In April 2020 HBAL received notice from NZ Aurways
Corporation of their intention 10 withdraw air
taffic control <ervices from seven regicnal airpoerts
including Hawke's Bay. HBAL has identified an
oppoctunity in this to shape future air semvices
through the use of technology and fevised
commercsal models, This has seen us lead the
formation of a strategic collaboration with Alrways,
New Plymouth Airport and Gsborne Airport

The impact of COMID-19 has emphasised the need
for revenue resibience and the strong foundation
created through our strategy of revenue
daversification. Over this reporting period the
foundationat work has been completed on our
master plan with detailed property development

plans in hand
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-4 ///%Am;l&ér

MOVEMENTS

_— ) - o )
=P (<1174 on year prior)

AIRWAYS ANNOUNCE *
WITHDRAWAL OF
63 CAR PARK ATC SERVICES ff

APRIL REVENUE

n year prnot

2 wWork we have us

eriod to reinforce t

e o
He 1ang o

4 with our shareholdars

2ial development Xcng p
- on the delivery of our

1Ly asperalions

Nga mihi masoha,

aCe awal

We bebieve that our partnership with our regronal

counals, tocal businesses, communty and Chied Executive Othcer
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WRERE WE
ARE HEADING

Hawke's Bay Airport’s vision is to be New Zealand’s
most vibrant and successful regional airport
welcoming 1 million passengers by 2030.

We will achieve this by delivering against our
mission of enabling safe, customer-focused

and sustainable air transport services in and out
of Hawke's Bay. We will also build the resilience
of future revenues by unlocking the potential

of our land.

Our success in working towards this vision will be
measured by performance across the five strategic
pillars of our business.

om0 -
A GLUTN \
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SAFETY FIRST

always be our top priory

Safety

New Zealand's mostvibrant and
successful regional airport - welcoming
1 million passengers by 2030

VISION
MISSION

To enable safe, customer-focused
and sustainable air transport

services in and out of
Hawke's Bay

CARE AND RESPECT
FOR OUR PEOPLE

STRATEGIC PILLARS

E % I

PROPERTY PEOPLE COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS PARTNERS

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK

i Ly
SOCIAL @‘ FINANCIAL ENVIRONMENTAL uF‘u:‘ OPERATIONAL
OPPORTUNITY % RETURN EXCELLENCE EFFICIENCY
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SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK

Our commitment to sustainability will be unwavering, It is a guiding
principle that will shape our decision making to ensure a holistic
approach that considers all four pillars of our sustainability framework.
We will grow our business in a way that delivers financial returns, and is
environmentally excellent, socially responsible and operationally efficient

4% o

SOCIAL OPPORTUNITY FINANCIAL RETURN
[ GOAL:
Invest in & positively contribute Stimulate economic growth via intellizent
to sustainable and healthy communities solutions with attractive payhack periods
while being & good neighbour, to deliver life-cycle savings & revenue

OUTCOMES

ty Sancesion

N

SUSTAINABILITY
FRAMEWORK

=

ENVIRONMENTAL EXCELLENCE OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

GOAL
Optimise the axheld layout & core processing
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STRATEGIC

“OUR ASPIRATION IS PILLARS

TO BE NEW ZEALAND'S

FIRST CARBON-

NEUTRAL AIRPORT.

WE WILL ACHIEVE

THIS BY PUTTING

SUSTAINABILITY

AT THE HEART OF
EVERYTHING WE DO”.

COMMERCIAL "~

%

OPERATIONS

=

PARTNERS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- ~

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

’

-
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HIGHLIGHTS

Attainment of our certified Safety Management System (SMS)
Commencing our membership of the Airport Council International’s
Airport Service Quality program with our Alrport Ambassador team
administering over 700 passenger surveys to provide valuable

Insights into satisfaction levels and benchmarks for improvement

b
'y
airport
carbon
accredited

Completing our first step towards carbon neutrality by gaining
Level 1 of the internationally recognised Airport Carbon
Accreditation (ACA) program

Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limited delivering Stage 2
of the Airport Expansion project in November 2019 with the
opening of new back of house and check-in facilities

Completing a 51.1 million dollar project to replace ageing
car park equipment and implement an improved traffic
management plan

Signing of a joint venture agreement with Centralines to

develop the feasibility for an on-airport solar energy project

Signing an agreement with Uber to introduce ride-sharing

services to the airport 1n November 2019

Insourcing of our rescue fire service after 25 years

of outsourced service

The Airport Ambassadar Programme celebrating its first
anniversary with over 30 of the initial team of 35 signing

up for a second year of service.

Receiving the Infrastructure Project of the Year award at the

NZAA annual awards for the recently completed Watchman

Road Project
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EBITDA - YEAR END

Airport Carbon
itation (ACA)

LEVEL 1

NZ 5¢
Infrastructure F
of the Year

Road Award Engagements with the HBA
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ICES FOF
ONTRACTED
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A STRONG FOUNDATION

ﬁ OPERATIONS:

SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

In an airrport environment, safety 15 always
paramount, At Hawke's Bay Airport, we operate

an overarching safety management system that
provides a systematic, explict and comprehensive
process for managing health and safety neks
aCross the business. The success in implementing
this holistic safety system was evidenced by the
organisation being ane of the first airports in

New Zealand to recewve an unquaified CAA SMS
accreditation in 2019, The framework also proved
(tself to be well-equipped 1o Integrate the airpont’s
COVID-19 management plan

WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT

Wildlife management remains a core focus

A pasture management plan has been developed
1o mamiam the long grass, which discourages
the |arger speaes of birds. The Alrport Fre team
continue to perform regular patrols and species
control activities. It has been encouraging to see
some significant reductions in both the numbes
and combined mass of bird strikes

SOAR BRAND

Dunng the second week of October 2019 the

team engaged in & wide range of activities as parn
of its participation in Airport Safety Week. The
programme culminated with the launch of Hawke's
Bay Airport’s new safety brand "SOAR”. The brand
15 an acronym for “Safety On and Around Airport”
It was developed by local design agency Coast

& (o-and Is being used to anchor safety-related
commumnications on and arcund the airporn

AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL

In Apnl 2020 notice was received from the Airways
New Zealand of a proposal 10 cease operations

of the control tower at Hawke's Bay Alrport. A
consultation process 15 underway with the regonal
airports impacted by this peoposal with regional
impact studies to be undertaken to inform and
support a final decision. It is by no means certain
this process will result in the complete shutdown
of the caontrol tower operation, and altemative

technologes and resourcing options are being
considered alongside the current solution, HBAL
has taken an active lead in this process and s
confident that the outcome will be one that meets
our operational requirements without compromise
10 passenger safety or services.

WITHDRAWAL OF JETSTAR

Jetstar's decision to withdraw semces from
regional New Zealand took effect from 1 December
2019, This concluded a four-year penod during
which it camed over 420,000 passengers on the
Hawke's Bay-Auckiand route. This reduction in
capacity was initially buffered by additional

Air New Zealand services prior 1o the simpact of
COVID-19, jetstar continues to operate |et senvices
from Auckland, Wellington, Chnstchurch, Dunedin
and Queenstown alrports and Hawke's Bay Aurport
will continue to advocate for theyr retum o

the region

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY

Construction In an airport environment presents
unigue nsks that must be managed carefully.
Throughout the project the team have worked
hard on building a strong safety culture

To date the projed has recorded no lost ime
to injunes and had no notifiable incidents,

A robust reporting system 1S in place with near
misses recorded and regutar tool box talks and
sub-contractor safety meetings occumng

Regular and detarled communications are sent by
the Construction Team to the Hawke's Bay Airport
Operations Team about any activity that may have
an impact on airport operations

In accordance with COVID-19 Alert Level 4
requirements, the site was temporanly shut
down on 23 March 2020, While construction was
haited, the project's design and management
teams continued working remotely to develop a
comprehansve COVID-19 management pian. This
enabled construction to continue safely in a level
3 environment with the site reopening on 28 Apnl
2020, thus mimenising the time lost to five weeks
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THE BEST PEOPLE

% PEOPLE:
)

RESTRUCTURING OUR BUSINESS

A capability review of HBAL's organisational
structure was undertaken during the year. This
examined the opportunity for improved efficences
and compared the relative merits of insourced and
outsourced models of delivery

The airport’s fire service was a key part of the
review process with a move away from the previous
contracted delvery model recommended,

An insourced structure was implemented from

June 2070 with the advantages identified including
a graater focus on training and development,
geater autenamy and responsibility for HEAL
acuvity and an improved alignment with HEAL
processes and systams. The review also identified
an opportunity, to safely reduce the aiport's
ategonisation which in turn delivered savings to
the costs associated with the delivenng the serice.

The Alrport Fire team are now employed directly
by HBAL which also prowides team mermbers with
poteatial career prograssion opportunities inside
the wder businass.

TEMPORARY OFFICE ENVIRONMENT

Ihe airpon team temporanty relocated from

1ts level 1 office in Novernber 2019 to enable
construction of Stage 3 of the redevetopment to
ommence Atemparary office was established
adjacent to the new baggage make-up area with
access from behind the check-in counters. The
ability to operate from within the feotprint of the
termina provided savings 1o the construction
project by eliminating the need for additional office
space to be leased dunng the construction penod.

AMBASSADOHE

The Airport Ambassador Program 1S now into its
second successul year wath the team of over

30 volunteers continuing to add huge value

to travellers and the wider alrpont campus,

Of particular note is that all members of the team
have been on board since the begnning, We are
indeed fortunate to have such a pleasant and
committed bunch of people.

In the future we are committed to ensunng
that our organisation s adequately resourced
and that Hawke's Bay Airport s not only seen
as a great place towerk but alse a key enabler
in the community and broader ecanomy.

Aong with welcoming people and providing
information and suppart the team have also been
invaluable in adminstering our Diannua airpon
survey quality questionnaires as well

as contributing positively to the airport’s health
and safety aulture,

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The HBAL continues 10 Invest in the ongoing
development of our people, This has included

both staff and ambassadors completing training
modules with Airports Council Intemational.

Staff also continue to be active in attending various
industry- related workshops and conferences.
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DL

FOR OVER 1,000
HOURS OF SERVICE
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GROWTH AND RESILIENCE

COMMERCIAL:

CAR PARK UPGRADE

Airports are a hub of commercial activity and the
airport car park is the first touchpoint for most
passengers. This 1s where the airport experience
starts, so s important the process 1S as smooth
and efficient as passible.

Car parking provides a critical source of funding for
all commercial airposns, Hawke's Bay Arport is no
different with car park revenue contnbuting over
30% of total annual income.

Against objectives to elevate customer satisfaction
and improve commercial performance, a significant
upgrade 1o the car park was completed in
November 2019. The scope of works included the
implementation of a revised traffic management
plan, the construction of a roundabout feeding
new dual entnies and exits and the installation

of new access control and payment technology

IMPROVED PAYMENT OPTIONS

The new payment system includes the option of
using paywave to pay on exit and the completety
ticketless option of wsing paywave on both entry
and exit Both of these options eliminate the
relsance on traditional payment machnes and
provide a more seamless customer experience

TEMPORARY RETAIL

To enable the third and final stage of the termenal
redevelopment to be completed in a safe and
efficient manner, the decision was made 10 relocate
the aport’s food and beverage offering to a
temporary location adjacent 10 departures. HBAL
acknowledge the effort of the team at Shani's who
have operated this “pop up” location which has
traded admirably through a challenging commercial
emironment

DIGITAL ADVERTISING

The roll out of HBAL's digital advertising strategy
ommenced dunng the year with a large digital
wall installed behind baggage collection and a
number of smaller screens located inside the new
departure area. Additional digital assets will be
instatled through the final stage of the project

This new advertising format has been well
receved by the market who have appreciated the
opportunity to display dyramic messages and

the reduced production Costs over traditional
lightboxes and billboards, The abdity to display
more than one advertiser at each location has also
improved the returns avatlable 1o the alrport from
space allocated to adverusing

The alrport 1s teserving 30% of the available screen
time o suppoet community and sense-of-ptace
messaging,

SOLAR FARM JOINT VENTURE

After measuring HBAL's carbon foatpnint as pan

of its Level 1 ACA accreditation It was established

that the airpart’s largest source of greenhouse

gas emissions 15 from its use of grid electriaty. In

alignment with its aspiration to be New Zealand's

fust carbon-neutrial airpor a joint venture

agreement has been entered into with Warpukurau-

based lines company Centralines 10 explare the
otential for a commercial solar farm at the airpoet.

The agreement wili see the parties work through
structured project development process to

select technicai partners and progress the project
to an investment ready state The intent beyond
this i5 10 establish a imited Liability partnership
threugh which a viable project could be funded and
developed, It is anticipated that the project would
ba constructed in stages with resource consents

to be sought far an array capable of producing

up to 10 megawatts of elactnoity,

A

A project of the scale planned will not only meet
the airport’s direct requirements but also create
an additional revenue stream with surplus energy
availabie for sale dire o the airport’s tenants
and indarectly to other entitses looking for a 100%
renewable supply.
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OVERGSLOCAL |
SUPPLIERAND SRS

CONTRACTOR S
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SECURING OUR FUTURE

PROPERTY:

TERMINAL REDEVELDOPMENT - STAGE 7 OFENINC

Stage 2 of the terminal redevelopment project was
completad in November 2019 with the opening of
common use airline check-in, back of house and
departure facilities along with new office and cargo
tenancies for Air New Zealand.

To enable Stage 3 construction Alr New Zealand's
Regional Lounge was relocated to a temporary
location which had previously been allocated

10 Jetstar,

The ability to maintan the lounge inside the
envelope of the buitding was 2 win for the
congtruction programme as it eliminated the

need for temporary external factlities which would
have been costly 1o operate and inconvenent for
travellers. The lounge will move back upstairs upon
completion of Stage 3 with the vacated space to

be repurposed for commercial meeting facilities,

MASTERPLAN

Werek commenced on our next generation master
plan in March 2019. This document will guide the
development of the aimport for the next 20 years,
The underlying growth assumptions were revised
following the et of Jetstar and again fotlowing the
COVID-19 lockdowns.

The process has included engagement with key
stakeholders including Air New Zealand, the general
aviation community and NZ Ainways. The master
plan summary will be rieased later in 2020.

RINWA PLANNING FRAMEWORK

HBAL has baen working with Napeer City Counail

on the distnct plan review in paraliel t the
development of its master plan. The objectve 15 to
ensure that revisions to the plan accomodate the
alrport’s future aspirations for aeronautical and
non-geronauitical (property) devetopment including
proposed changes to noise Contours.

DEVELOPMENT PLANMING

Work continues to accelerate the actwvation
of HBAL's propernty aspirations in alignment with
the updated master plan.

A property development strategy 15 currently
underway. This will quantify the investment
required to advance HBALs property
aspirations and identify a property partnership
framework through which opportunities can be
commercialised.

NEW BAGGAGE SYSTEM

An automated baggage make-up system was
commissioned ahead of Stage 2 completicn.
The system was specified in alignment with
HBAL's master plan and growth aspirations.

It 1s designed to integrate with future security
seening requirements and has a @paaity
to handle 3 million bags per annum.

NEW JET CENTRE

Existing tenant Airport Holdings Ltd completed
construction of a new 850 sqm development on
a site adjacent 10 their Skyline Aviation complex,
Extensive ground works were required to support
the development with an existing storm water
awale extended to ensure additional runoff

15 managed in accordance with HBAL's three
wiaters policy.

The new faolity 1s proading private 21 hangarage
and will also house a purpose-bullt guest lounge
10 support the future growth of private charter
and ground handling services.

RELOCATION OF AIR 8P TANK FARM

The BP aviation fuel farm was relocated 1o a
location south of the terminal during the year,
The maove frees up land for future car park
expansion in alignment with HBAL's master plan

The new development also serves to lmprove
regional resilience with on-site fuel storage
increased courtesy of a larger 50,000 ltre super-
vault tank and the upguaging to a 17,000 Litre
arcraft refueling truck
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PLAYING OU

R PART

PARTNERS:

BIODIVERSITY HAWKE'S BAY

HBAL 15 proud 10 be the Platinum Sponsor
of Biodversity Hawke's Bay. The partnership

involves an annual financial contribution

The partnership will also
directly with Biodwersity

In the 19805 the Art Deco Trust was formed to
ct the heritage buildings which were at risk

of being demolished, The Ant Deco Trust has grown

into a significant and influential social enterpnse

ihat acts
celebr:

e irus

s also the entity behing
Napier Art Deco Festival which
of New Zealand's largest and most iconic events.

became one

HBAL 5po

Automobile” ca goTy at the 2
Art Deco Festival,

‘S BAY AIR AMBULANCE

The Hawke's Bay Air Ambulance

transportation for patients whao regquire s

cardiac or ney
outside of the | y region, The service
1S basad at Hawk 3y Airport and 15
a al partnesship between the K
District Health Board and Skyline Aviation

Tiner

vered via

Vies Bay

HBAL has been supportin

g the Ar Ambulance
sefvice since 2010, Since thes time o )

has been contn dw
ambulance and pat
and costs
wnd education

Eil

The Eastern Institute of Technology (EIT)

ISthe

F lerary education provider in

plays in preganng students careers in the
aviation and weder tounsm mdustries, The HBA

15 proud to fund EIT's annual Tounsm Scholarship
and congratulates 2019 reapient Audrey Gardiner

for her st

HB DC3 PR

HBAL management have Deen supporting a
ormed charitable trust which 15 planmning
)(-3 at Hawke's Bay Airport with a view
0 operating Art Deco inspired scenic flights

ITEM 7

PAGE 38

Item 7



Item7  Hawke's Bay Airport Limited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2020

Hawke's Bay Airport Ltd Annual Report 2020 Attachment 1

\ENTATI f
WHO TOGETHER WROTE V
BIODIVERSITY ACTION PLAN 2017-2020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The amount of $115,304 per annum was paid to members of the Board for the 12 months to 30 June 202(

TM Porter 44 804
SN Park 23,5060
TC Randell 23500
W N Harvey 23,500

115,304

No other remuneration or benefits other than normal reimbursement of expenses has been paid
or given to Directors,

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS

Taine Randell teased to be a Director on 30 lune 7020, Sarah Reo was apponted as & Director,
effective 1 July 2020 and jon Nichols was appointed as a Director, effective 1 September 20X

BOARD COMMITTEES

& at 30 June 2020 HBAL had the following committee:

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE: Members are Sarah Park (Chair), Tony Porter, Wendie Harvey and Taine Randell

ENTRIES IN THE INTERESTS REGISTER

As at 30 june 2020, the Dyrectors have declared general disclosure of interest in the followmg entities;

I M PORTER

Parnell Tractor Company Limited Director
Hawke's Bay Alrport Construction Limited Director
S N PARK
Scotch & Sparkies Limited Director/ Sharehoider
5 Genetics Management Limited Director
sous Genetics Partnesship Limited Director
Eurogrow Potatoes Limited Director
Hereworth School Trust Boa Trustee
Pacific Edge Limited Director
National Provident Fund Durector
Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limited Director
T C RANDELL
Hordland Lobster Company Limitad Director
Australian Lobster Company (GP) Limated Director
FLC Trustee Limited Director
Beltop Holdings Limited Duector
Z58 Holdings Limited Director/Shareholder
Kahungunu Asset Holding Company Limited Director
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KAHC Investments Limited
Kiwigarden Limited
Hawka's Bay Airport Construction Limited

W N HARVEY

Cemralmes Limited

Excellence in Business Solutions Limited
New Zeatand Gambling Commission
Eastland Group Limited

Eastiand Network Limited

Eastiand Port Limited

The Blectrical Training Company Limited
Aurora Energy Limited

Hre and Emesgency New Zealand
Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limited
Gisborne Airport Limeted

Director
Director
Director

Director
Director/Shareholder
Commissioner
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Ditector
Director
Director

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

Employee remuneration and other benefits exceeding $100,000:

2020 2019

$100,000 - $110,000
§110,001 - $120,000
$120,001 - $130,000
§130,001 - $140,000
$140,001 - $150,000
§150,001 - $160,000
$160,001 - $170,000
§170,001 - $180,000
$180,001 - $190,000
$100,001 - $200,000
§200,001 - $210,000
$210,001 - $220,000
§220,001 - $230,000
§230,001 - $240,000
§240,001 - $250,000
§250,001 - $260,000
§260,001 - $270,000
£270,001 - $280,000
280,001 - $290,000
$290,001 - $300,000

AUDITORS

o N
'

The Office of the Auditor General is appointed as auditor under Section 15 of the Public Audst Act 2001
and Section 70 of the Local Government Act 2002, Philip Pinckney of Baker Tily Staples Rodway Audit Limited
has been appointed 1o provige these services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for ensunng that the financal statements and the Statement of Service
Performance present fairly the financial position of HBAL as at 30 June 2020 and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

The Directors consider that the financial statements of HBAL have been prepared using appropriate accounting
poficies consistently applied, and supponted by reasonable judgements and estimates and that
all relevant financial reporting and accounting standards have been followed,
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DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

TONY WENDIE SARAH TAINE

DIRECTOR PORTER HARVEY PARK RANDELL

Qualifications BE(Hons) LLB MA Economics/AIF LLB/Bcom

Specific Knowdedge/Experience

Arport Operation/Management

Management of Long-Life Assets

O Expenence

Property Development & Management

Generic Skills

Executive leadership and Strategy

Governance

Hnancia

Understanding of wi and

Treaty of Waitangs Issues

Risk and Compliance

Legal and Regulation

Peopie Management

Other Factors

Geographical Location Hawke's Bay | Hawke's Bay Hawke's Bay Hawke's Bay

Tenure Years 11 years & years b years 5years

Date of Appointment 1 July 2009 | 1 July 2016 1 july 2014 1 Apnl 2015

Date Last (Re-)Eected 1july 2018 | 1 October 2019 | 3 july 2017 26 Aprit 2017

Gender 1] F [ M
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STATEMENT OF

SERVICE PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

THE FOLLOWING 15 A STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE RELATING TO THE KEY OBIECTIVES
LISTED IN HBALUS STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2020

ACTIVITY & OUTCOME
Achieve Performance Targets: 501 Actual Result | % Increase | Status
Passenger Numbers 772000 | 561000 30% (=3
Rever ye $6,333,136 | 56,276,501 @
OPTIMISE EBITDA §4.439088 | 52,182,690 @
3:::::0'““ NPAT 7 | Slun1z.660) ()
RETURNS ROE - annuaksed 5.8% -30% @
Geanng ITh 5% 2% ()
Dwdend 749,627 0 -100% 2]
Implement Sustamabibty Framework Develop & implement 5]
SUSTAINABILITY  Establish Energy & Carbon Baseline Policy & Framewark [A)
Develop a Three Water Policy
Enhancz understandng of our traveliers and key customers o
Imglement our Safety Managemant System o
Complete Stage 2 of the Terminal Expansion Project [
Develop our digital strategy mcorporating improved business efficency, passenger joumey )
QPERATIONS enhancement and advertising solutions
Design and development of apeon Lapadity plan 10 guamniee (eved of serace to asline operatorns
_and enable future aimice busicess development et
Bannual strategic Rk Review (=)
Wildilfe Managemers Plan developed and operabonzl fo)
Implement car park System Enhancement @
_Fr-.new Asronautcal Revenue and Raute Development Stratesy B
COMMERCIAL l-)c:'e—c:):—amur.\; retad in lne with the eased tammina expansion to ;owde & halanced shopping
environment for consumers, with 3 mox of local owner-operators and corporate-owned siores
Complete Aifreight Feasiility study 5]
finalise the 20 year mastar plan moorposating forecasts /nose/lang use
PROPERTY Stmulate property development opportunities to leverage fand bank retums [
Property development undervay for new tenances 5]
Proacvely engage mith the HB community, local and central Sovernment and other key stakebiolders 5]
Undertake stakeboloer and public consultaion &5 pan of master plan development .
PANIAS Continued collaboration with mana whenua on terminal development sense of place /master plan (=]
Fartnershup with key business, aidmes & commun ity groups e
Creste & HBAL teamn cultute where the focus & extemal, on our tustomers and our key stakeholders,
where exellent Service 1 the norm and our busness enjoys a strong reputation for delivenng & high (5]
standard of services, facilities and mitatwes
PEOPLE Review economees of scase and (NSourang Versus outsourcing of key operational resources (2]
Invest o teams develogment & Urainng (5]
Deveiop team capsbility (53

KEY: @ Mests or exceeds trget @ Within 10° of target @ 10" or more below target
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020 2019
E) $

Aviation
Car parking .
Business Park 54
Other Revenue 127971
Total Revenue 3 6276501 7,685 915
less Opeml)ng Expenses i (&,09!.;005) i (3,75i,& 19)
Operating Profit Before Financing Costs and Depreciation 2,182,496 3,934,196
Depreciation (2.140,097) (1,550,531)
Impairment Reversal/ (Charge) 8 696,400 .
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 5 {1371.441)
Anance Income 569 332
Hnance Expense (349,309) (130,061)
Net Profit before income tax {981382) 2,253,996
Income Tax Expense 6 (31258) (757,877)
Net Profit after income tax {1,012.,640) 1,496,120
Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss
Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment, net of deferred tax - 2944 287
Deferred 1ax on revalualior 6 138,136 96,373
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (874,305) 4,536,780
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

ISSUED RETAINED REVALUATION TOTAL

CAPITAL EARNINGS RESERVE EQUITY
BALANCE AT 1 JULY 2019 13,789,155 8,893,400 11,420 BO1 34,103,356
Profit/(Loss) for the penod (1.012640) (1,012,640)
Revaluation of Property,
Plant & Equipment
Reclassification of depreciation 494 056 (494,056)
on revalued assets
Movement in deferrad tax 138,336 138,336
on revaluation reserye
Total comprehensive income (518584) (355,721) (874.305)
Destributions o 3 =
shareholders {note 10)
Movement in equity for the period - (518584) (355,721) (874,305)
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2020 13,789,155 8374 816 11,065 081 33,229,051
BALANCE AT 1 JULY 2018 13,789,155 7,631,082 8,724,329 30,144,567
Revaluation of Property, 2944 287 2,944 287
Plant & Equipment
Reclassification of depreciation - 344 188 (344,188)
on revalued assets
Movement in deferred tax - - 96,373 96373
on revaluation reserve
Total comprehensive income 1,840 308 2696472 4.536,780
Destributions to {577 ,990) - (577.960)
shareholders (note 10)
Movement in equity for the period - 1262318 2696472 3958790
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2019 13,789,155 8893400 11420801 34103356
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020 2019
E) $
Property, plant and equipment 7 52127 424 47317601
Investment property 8 4,960,606 4376319
Intangibles 961 1,538
Right-of-use Assels 14 420,510 -
Total non-current assets 57,509,500 51695458
Trade and other recelwbles 9 748,178 1035893
Cash and cash equwvalents 281818 182 046
Total cumrent assets 102999 1217539
TOTAL ASSETS 58,539,495 52913397
Issued capita 13,789,155 13,789,155
Retained earmings 8374815 B.893,400
Revaluation Reserve 11,065,081 11,420,801
TOTAL EQUITY 10 33,229,051 34,103,356
Deferred tax Hability 6 4,335,256 4487178
Rentals in advance 11 1011549 1096,022
Borrowings 12 10,688,362
lease Liabilities 14 315,329
Total non-current liabilities 5,682,135 16,271,762
Trade and other payables 11 996,514 2055,132
Employee benefits 110,882 69,889
Provision for Retentions Pavable 13 15397 37,520
Borrowings 12 18,261,762 375,738
Lease Liabsities 14 105,181
Total current liabilities 19628309 2538279
Total liabilities 25,310,444 18,810 041
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 58539495 52,913 397

These financal statements were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board on 21 September 2020
on behalf of Hawke's Bay Airport Limited,

4 Director & Audit and Finance Commttee Char

(|l

{ l\ \ \WN Harvey
VU Chaw

. 3

\
\

0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH WAS PROVIDED FROM:

Revenues 6,281,680 7597 581
Interest Received 569 E2 Y
6282249 7597 974

CASH WAS DISBURSED TOx

Supplers and Employees (4,069 868) (3,744 543)
Goods & Services Tax (Net) 100,993 (116,750)
Interest Paid (383,935) (252.563)
Income Tax Paid {235.304) (863.547)

{4,498,133) (6,977,404)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,784,116 2620570

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH WAS PROVIDED FROM:

Sale of fixed assets 46,549

CASH WAS DISBURSED TO;

Capital Works {8,895 0721) (2176,021)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,847472) (9,176021)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH WAS PROVIDED FROM
Borrowings 7197.462
CASH WAS DISBURSED TO:

7037508

Dwidends Paid (577.990)

lease Payments (34.333)

Debdt Repa

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7,163,129 6,459,518

Netincrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 93772 (95,933)

Add Opening Cash and Cash equivalents 182,046 277979

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 281818 182 046

REPRESENTED BY

Cash at Bank 277,332 167,578

Cash in hand & 485 14 465
281818 182 (46
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

Hawke's Bay Airport Limited 1S & company
mcarporated in New Zealand under the Companies
Act 1993 and s owned by the Crown 50%, Napier
City Council 26%, Hastings District Council 20%.

The Company 1s domiciled in New Zealand and is
prinapal place of business 1s 111 Main North Raad,
Weashore, Napier The Company operatas the
Hawke's Bay Airport.

Hawke's Bay Aiport Limited 15 defined as a Counail-
controlied organisation pursuant to Part S of the
tocal Government Act 2002

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The finanoal statements have been prepared

a required by the Local Government Act 2002 and
in accordance with all applicable financial reporting
standards and other genesally acceptad accounting
practices in New Zealand. They comply with the
New Zoaland equivalents to International fnancial
Reparting Standards (NZ IFRS) as appropriate

10 profit-oniented eéntities applying the Reduced
Disclosure Regime.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial Statements comprise the
financial statements of Hawke's Bay Airport Limsted
and 1ts wholly owned subsidiary, Hawke's Bay
Airport Construction Limited (the Group)

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group
The financal statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intragroup balances

and transactions are eliminated in prepanng

the consolidated financial statements.

MEASUREMENT BASE

The financial statements have been prepared on

4 going concetn bases in accordance with histonical
cost concepts as modified by the revaluation

of cenain assets and liabilities as identified

In specific accounting policies below,

Refer to Note 2 of the Notes 10 the Accournts
for detail regarding the Directors’ assessment
of goig congem

PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in
New Zealand dollars (5), which is the functional
currency of the Group, rounded 1o the nearest dollar.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES,
ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with N2 IFRS requires the use of certain
oritical accounting estimates. It also requires
management 1o exercise its judgement in the

process of applying the Group's accourting policies.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on histoncal expenence and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonabie under
the arcumstances, Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The esumates and undetlying
aSsumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the penod in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the penod
of the revision and future penods If the revision
afacts both current and future panods.

(ritical estimates are inciuded in the impairment
assessment of nvestment Property, and in the
assessment of the recoverabie amounts of Capital
Work in Progress, the calculation of disposal

of demolished terminal assets and the fair value
of Property, Mant and Equipment. Management
has exercised its judgement on the selection

of depreciation rates and the classification

of financial assets.

Judgements are exercised in relation to the timing
of capitalisaton of interest, the application of

NZ IFRS 16 Leases to the perpetual lease, and the
current/ non-current presentation of bomowings
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PARTICULAR
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

REVENUES

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consderation received or receivable for the sale

of goods and services in the ardinary course of the
Group's actmties. Revenue s shown net of goods
and services tax (i applicable), retuens, rebates and
discounts. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that futue economic benefits will flow to
the Company and when specific critenia have been
met for each of the Group's attivities. Revenues
consst mainly of landing charges, car parking fees,
terminal and leased land rentals and concessions.
Lease income (s recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the {aase.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other recelvables are stated at net
realsable value after provision for doubtiul debts.

TAXATION

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax on profits for the penocd comprises
wurrent tax, deferred tax and any adjustment for
tax payable i pravious periods. Income tax 1s
recognised in profit or loss as tax expense except
when it reiates to 1tems credited directly 10 equity,
In which case it Is recorded in other comprehensive
income

CURRENT TAX

Current tax 5 the expected tax payable on the
income for the penod based on tax rates and tax
laws which are enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date,

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax arises by providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabiities for financial reporting purposes

and the equivalent amounts used for tax purposes.

Deferred 1ax assets and Liahilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expacted to apply o the
peniods when the assets or liabilities giving rise
to them are realised or settied.

Defeed tax assets, mcluding those related to
the tax effect of income tax losses available to be

carried forward are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences or unused tax losses can be reslised,
Deferred tax assets are reviewed sach reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it 5 no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will

be reslsed.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The following definitions have been used foe the
preparation of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash and cash equivatents: cash in hand, depoats
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with onginal maturities

of three months or less that are readily convertible
10 known amounts of cash and which are subject
toan insgnificant nsk of changes in value

Operating actwities: Transactions and other events
that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing actvities; Activities relating to the
acquisition, holding and disposal of non-current
assets and of investments, such as sequnties,
not falling within the definition of cash,

hnanong actvities: Activities which result in
changes in the size and composition of the capital
structure of the Group, both equity and debt not
falling within the definition of cash.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Iterms of propenty, plant and equpment are
initially recogresed at cost. As well as the purchase
price, cost includes directly attributable costs,
Subsequent, to initial recognition, land and land
improvement and airport infrestructure and
bulldings are carried at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment osses.
Capetal work In progress is cammed at cost and
transferred to another Gategory as assets afe
completed. Other assets are recorded at cost

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses

Any revaluation increment is credited to the
revaluation reserve and induded i other

comprehensve income, except to the extent that

it reversed a previous decrease of the same asset
previously recognised within net profit in the
Statement of Comprehensive income, in which case
the increase is recogmised within net profitin the
Statement of Comprehensive Income,
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Each year the difference between depreciation

basad on the revalued camying amount of the

asset charged to the income statement, and the
depreciation based on the orginal cost 1s transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings,

Property, plant and equipment compnses airfield
and othet inf@structure, car parks, bulldings
and equipment.

ASSETS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
The cost of assets under construction is recorded
ot incurred cost as at balance date,

DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
When an tem of plant, property and equipment

15 disposad of any gain or foss s recogmized in the
profit of loss calculated at the difference between
the saie price and the carrying value of the asset

CYCLICAL MAINTENANCE UPGRADES

Significant expenditure involving renewal of runway
surface components 15 capitalised and subgect

to depreciation at the appropriate fates.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, which |5 property held to eam
rentads and/or for capital appraciation, & initially
recognesed at cost, ncludng transaction costs. Costs
include all expenditure relating to infrastructure
development and constroction Investment property
15 depreciated using the cost model allowad

under NZ IAS A0 Investment Property. Investment
properties include all aspects of the business park
development adjacent to the airport

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation Is charged on a straight-line basls
townte off the cost or value of property, plant

and equipment and investment property over their
expectad economic lives

The prinapat depreciation rates are as follows:;

Airfield Infrastructiure Base  0.71% to 5,56%

Surface 6.67% to 10.00%
Business Park Infrastructure 0.00% to 10.00%

Burldings 2.50% 10 10.00%
Plant & Equpment 290% 10 40.00%
Car Park & Roading 1.67% to 500%
Fencing 5.00% to 15,00%
Lighting 4,00% to 10.00%
Fumniture & Fittings 10.00%

Office Equipment 30.00%
INTANGIBLES

Intangibles comprise computer software that
15 not an integral part of the related hardware

This software has been either purchased or
developed internally and s initially recorded

at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the
software's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits assoclated
with the tem will flow to the Group and the cost
of the jtem can be measured reliably, The costs
of maintaining the software are charged to profit
or loss. Softeare 15 amortised over three years
using the straight-line method,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RECOGNITION
AND MEASUREMENT

FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
followwng categories: fair value through profit

or loss, fair value through other comprehensive
income ar amortsed cost The classification
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the financial asset and the contractual
cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset.
Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date, At balance
date, the Group had financial assets classified only
at amortised cost.

AMORTISED COST

hnanoal assets at amortised cost have contractuat
terms that give rise to cash flow on specified dates
that are solely princpal and interest and are held
within a business model whose objective is 1o
hold assets in order to miiect those contractual
cash flows,

The Group's amortised cost finanoal assets
comprse of cash and cash equnalents and
accounts recenahle.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date - the date on which

the Group commts to purchase or sell the asset.
Ananoal assets are |mitially recognisad at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
arned at fair value through profit or toss. Financial
assets camned at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
Co5ts are expansad.

After initial recogmition, amortised cost financial
assets are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, ess impairment

Ananoial assets are derecognised when the nights
to recawve cash flows from the investments have
axpired or have been transferred, and the Group
has transferred substantially all the nsks

and rewards of ownership.
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FINANTIAL LIABILITIES

Non-derivative financial labilities are recognised
at amortised cost, comprsing oranal dett

less prinapal payments and amortisatian.

Trade payables and borrowings are classified

as financial liabilities.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying values of its assets to determine whether
there i5 any indication that those assats have
been ympaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and valye
In use, 1s compared to the asset's carrying value.
Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its
recoverable amount 1S expensed to profit or loss.

GST

All amounts are shown exclusve of goods
and services tax (GST), except for recevables
and payables that are stated indusive of GSL

LEASES

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-
of -use asset and a-lease liability in accordance with
NZ IFRS 16, excopt for:

+ leases of low value assets
+ |eases with a duration of 12 manths or less.

Llease liabilities are measured at the present

value of the contractual payments due to the
lassar over the kease term, with the discount fate
determined by reference 10 the rate inherent in the
lease untess {as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the Group's
incremental borrowing rate on commencement of
the lease s used, Vanable lease payments are only
Included in the measurement of the fease liability
if they depend on an index or rate. In such (ases,
the instial measurement of the lease liabdity
assumes the vanable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are expensed in the
period to which they relate.

On mitid recognition, the carrying value of the
lease Liability aiso includes:

+ amounts expected 1o be payable under any
residual value guarantee

+ the exercise pnce of any purchase option
granted in favour of the group If it is reasonably
certain to access that option

- any penalties payable for terminating the lease,
if the term of the lease has been estimated
based on a termination option being exercised.

Right-of-use assats are imitially measured at the
amount of the lesse liatslity, reduced for any lease
Incentives received, and Increased for:

- laase payments made at or before
commencement of the lease

- mitial direct costs incurred

« the amount of any provision recognised where
the group 15 contractually required to dismantie,
remove of restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to initial messurement, lease habilities
Increase as a result of interest charged at &
constant rate on the batance outstanding and

are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-
use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaiming term of the lease or over the
remaining economc life of the asset iIfthis &
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group rewises (ts estimate of the term of
any lease (for example, it reassesses the probability
of a lessee extension of termination opton

being exercised), it adjusts the canying amount

of the lease kability to reflect the payments over
the revised term, which are discounted using a
revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease
liatelities 15 similarly revised when the vanable
element of future lease payments dependent on

a rate or Index 1S revised, except the discount 1ate
remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
nght-of-use assel, with the revised carrying ameunt
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease
term. If the canrying amount of the right-of-use
asset 1s adjusted to zero, any further reduction

15 recognised in the profit or loss:

Wher the Group renegotiates the ontractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends
on the nature of the modification:

« if the renegotiation resufts i one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for
the additicnal nghts-of-use obtained, the
modifiation is accounted for as a separate lease
in accordance with the above policy.

« Inall other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is
an extension to the lease tarm, or one or more
additional assets being leased), the lease liability
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15 remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification data, with the right-of-use
asset being adjusted by the same amount,

+ If the renegotiation results In a decrease in the
scope of the lease, both the carnng amount
of the lease liability and night-of-use asset are
reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termmation of the lease with
any difference recogrused in the profit of loss.
The leasa labdity is then further adjusted to
ensure its camying amount reflects the amount
of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated tenm, with the modified lease
payments discounted ot the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use asset
15 adjusted by the same amount.

Fot contracts that both convey a ngh to the
Group 1o use an identified asset and require
services to be provided to the Group by the lessor,
the Group has elected to account for the entire
contract as a lease Le. it allocates any amount

of the contractual payments to, and accounts
separately for, any senaces provided by the
supplier as part of the contract.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

All accounting policies are cansistent with prior
year with the exception of the foliowing

NZ IFRS 16 Leases was adopted on 1 July 2019,
The Company applied the medified retrospective
transition method and thus prior comparatives
were not restated. The Company has elected to
present right-of-use assets and lease liabilites
separately in the Statement of Anancial Position,
Depreciation of nght-of-use assets is included

In depreciation and amortisation expense in

the Statement of Comprehensive Income, The
cash outflows related to the principal portion

of the fease liability and the related interest are
presented separately within the financing activities
in the Statement of Cash Flows,

IMPACY OF ADOPTION OF NZ IFRS 16 ON THE
COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

As indicated above, the Company has adopted
NZ IFRS 16 from 1 July 2019, but has not restated
omparatives for the 2019 reporting penod, as
permitted under the transitional provisions

in the standard, The reclassifications and the
adjustments ansing from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 July 2019. The new accounting policies
are disdosed in the Leases accounting policy
note above

i) Practical expedients applied
In applymg NZIFRS 16 for the first time, the

Company has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard,

a) determined the start date of all existing
[eases was the date of initial application,
being 1 july 2019,

The Company also elected not 1o reassess whether
& contract 15 or containg a lease at the date of
inital application, Instead, for contracts entered
into before the transtion date the Company relied
on its assessment made applying NZ IAS 17 and
NZ IFRIC & Determinung Whether an Atrangement
Contains a legse

i) Measurement of lease liabilities

The aggregate lease liability recognised in the
statement of financial position at 1 July 2019
and the Company's operating lease commitment
as at 30 June 2019 can be reconciled as follows

2020
$
Operating lease commitments
dgdo as at 30 June 2019 867,000
Adjustment for recognition
of perpetual nature of lease 418110
(Less): short-term leases not
recogrised as a Hability
(Less): low-vaiue leases not
recognised as & liability
Lease Liability rmcognised
as at 1 july 2019 48890
Of which are
Current lease liabilities .
Non-current [ease liahilities 48,890
48890

iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for land leases
were measured on a modified retrospective basis
ot the amount equal to the lease hiability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepald or accrued lease
payments refating to that {ease recomnised inthe
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2019,

iv) Lessor accounting

The Company thd not need to make any
adyustments to the accounting for assets held
35 lessor under operating leases as a result
of the adoption of NZ IFRS 16,
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
AND EVENTS IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial position and performance of the Group wis particularty affected by the following events
and transactions during the reporting period

COVID-19

Both globally and in New Zealand, international barder dosures, domestic lockdowns and ongoing travel
restnctions due to COVID19 have had an Immediate and dramatic impact on airlines, air senvices, airport traffic
and therefora revenues for those in the industry

On 23 March 2020 the NZ Government announced that the natton would enter COMD-19 Alert Level 4 at 11.5%m
on Wednesday 25th March 2020, severely limiting all travel within New Zealand to essential services only,

This national lockdown remained in place for a five-week penod, followed by several weeks at Alert level 3
throughout which all travel remained restricted

The Govermnment mandate for Air New Zealand to cease air services 1o regional airpons under Level 4 saw

the airport closed for the duration of the lockdown period, effectvely reducing airline and passenger traffic,
aeronautical and commercial revenue streams (Such as car parking and retail concessions) 1o 2ere throughout
that period

AL that time HBAL management moved swiftly to preserve the cash posstion of the business by implementing
a recovery plan that has, among other factors, sienificantly reduced the cost base, deferred non-essential
capital expenditure and accessed all available Government subsides The purpose of those actions was to
offset as much of the reduction In revenue as possible, while still being able to operate safely to the required
CAA standards and provide needed senaces for alrport users

Since the retum to Levels 1and 2, air traffic and associated revenues are in Line with post Level 4 lockdown
forecasts; howevers, they remain vulnérable 10 changes in Alert Levels by the NZ Government, as recently
experienced in August when Auckland moved to Level 3 and the rest of the Country to Level 2

The ongoing uncertainty around Alert Level restrictions and the negative economic impacts that wil follow

the pandemic will continue to dnve lower demand for air travel in the immediate future, The extent of this
reduced demand and the timeframe for recovery are uncertain The Board and manasement team continue

10 evolve a series of forward-tooking scenanos to enable the arport to rapidly respond to changes in operating
conditions, while also building resilience from diversified revenue Streams

Hawke's Bay Airport remains focused on achieving its strategic goals, albeit within the context of navigating
the recovery cyde fram the effects of COVID-19,

2. GOING CONCERN

The 2020 financal statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes that the Group
will have sufhicient cash to pay its debts as they fall due for & period greater than 12 months

The Directors have determined the going concern basis i1s appropnate based on the following key estimates
and judgements
+ assessments of the positive impact of the actions taken by the Group since the start of the pandemic

to signihcantly reduce the cost base and to manase capital
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+ Canceliation and deferral of all non-essential capital expenditure, reflecting lower passenger numbers

Appiied for and received the New Zealand Govermment wage subsidy, wage subsidy extension
and resurgence subsidy extension

Forecast passenger numbers for the three-year period from 1 July 2020, which show a recovery from
the lows in March-Apnl 2020 period and a consequential return to profitatility for the Group in Y23

+ Cash flow forecasts for the period FY21-23 prepared by the Group which indicate the Group has sufficient
cash to meet Its operational expenditure and complete the terminal redevelopment project

+ As at 10 July 2020, the Group has entered Into & two-year loan faolity of $9m provided by its shareholders
(Crown 54.5m, NCC §2.34m, HDC $236m)

+ On 27 August 2020, obtained a letter from ANZ Bank wanirg the leverage covenant on its existing
$21m lean facility and a commitment of ongoing financial support with access to loan aalities

+ The decision 1 not pay a dividend for FY20, to strengthen the balance sheet and presarve capital
in the face of uncertainty as to the angong impact of (OVID-19 on New Zealand and the possibility
of changing Alert Levels on the awation secto,

3. OPERATING REVENUES

Aviation income includes ol revenue from landing charges, alrcraft parking, concessions, aufield
and terminal rentats.

Car parking includes all income from the short-term, daily and long-5tay car parks

Business park revenue includes all rental income from tenants occupying sites on the business
park imvestment property

Other revenue incledes advertising, use of the conference facilities and other revenue.

The Group applied for the New Zealand Government COVID-19 wage subsidy in late March 2020
and received payment on 2 April 2020,

Atotal of $49 207 has been recognised in “Other Revenue” in the Consolidated Statement of Comprahensive
Income as the amount offsetting wages paid from the date of lockdown in March 2020 1o balance date.

All revenoe |5 net of discounts and rebates

4. OPERATING EXPENSES

2020 2019
$ $
Audit Fees - audit of inancial statements 60,062 30,879
Dyrectors Fees 115,304 105,000
Lease of Land - 34 000
Employee Benefits 1113126 1106,536
One-off Restructuring Costs 218,060 -
Other Operating Expenses 2587453 2475304
4,094,005 3,751,719
2020 2019
$ $
Wnte off of the net book value refating to parts of the old terminal
building whech wera demolished durning the financial year. (1371.441)
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6. TAXATION

2020 2019
$ $
A CURRENT YEAR RECONCILIATION
Profit Before Taxation (981382) 2253996
Prima Facie Taxation @ 28% (274,787) 631,119
ADJUSTED FOR THE TAX EFFECT OF:
Depreciation on revalued assets 138336 06,373
Non-deductible expenses 167,708 30,384
Prior Years (over)funder provision
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 31,258 757 877
COMPRISING
Current Tax 2h 844 801,393
Deferred Tax 6,414 (43,522)
31258 757817
B. TAXATION PAYABLE/(RECEIVABLE)
Balance at 1 July 245,733 307,764
Prior period adjustment 3474 -
Termunal Tax (pard) /refunded {235,120) (294 404)
14087 13,360
Current Tax Payable 24 844 801,398
Provisional Tax pad - [569,084)
RWT paid on Interest - 59
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 38931 245,133
C. IMPUTATION CREDIT ACCOUNT
Impatation Credits carmed forward 3300,173 2662304
Dacrease ansing from tax refunded dunng the year (24 ,715) (22,890)
Increase arising from tax paid during the year 260,100 885,533
Appbied to Dividends pard - (226 774)
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 3,535,558 3300173
D. DEFERRED TAX RECONCILIATION
Opening batance 4487178 3577996
Defarrod 1ax expense 6,414 (139,895)
Revaluation of PPRE (138,336) 1,049,077
CLOSING BALANCE 4355256 4487 178
RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED TAX EXPENSE
Reclassified from curment tax
Credited to tax expense 6,414 (43,522)
Charged to other comprehensive income (138,336) (1,145,450)
{131922) (1,188971)
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E. DEFERRED TAX ANALYSIS

Holiday Pay (8.246) (9,736)
Impairment Provision - (194 ,992)
Provision for doubtful debt 4526 60
Intangibles (47) (47)
Income in Advance {309,209) (332,809)
Runway Refurbishment 386,552 446,157
Capitalised interest 53,615 34,301
Revaluation of PPRE 2942,396 3080,732
Asset Base and Depreciation Differences 1,285,668 1463512
4,355,256 4487178
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land &Land  Airport Infrastructure Other  Capital Work Total
Improvements & Buildings Assets  in Progress
AT 30 JUNE 2019
Falf Value 5,800,362 33893303 1,705,788 6985037 48384580
Acc dep (0) (0) 1066079 0 10664979
5,800,362 33,893,393 638,809 6,985,037 47317601
Dpening net book value 5,800,362 33,893 393 538 808 6985037 47,317,601
Additons 0 331932 206,338 7,730,091 8,269 261
Disposals 0 1378687 0 100,869 1,479,556
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation a5 1823548 155369 0 1979832
Transfers 278291 71873870 803013 (8955,174) 0
CLOSING NET BOOK VALUE 6,077,688 38,896,960 1492789 5,659,986 52,127 424
AT 30 JUNE 2020
Faur Value 6,077,688 38,895 960 2698457 5,659,087 53333092
Acc dep 0 (0) 1205668 0 1205668
6,077 688 38,896,960 1,492,789 5,659,987 52,127 424

As 4t 30 June 2020 the land and land improvements were valued by an independent valuer - Telfer Young
Limited — and the Aurport Infrastructure & Buildings were valued by an independent valuer - Peter Seed Ld,
The last independent valuation of these Property, Plant and Equipment assets was performed at 30 June 2019,

The valuations were on the bass of current fair value Telfer Young Limited determined the fair value by
direct reference to recent market transactions on armi's length terms for properties comparable in size and
location, 1aking into account the highest and best use for the land. This s level 2 on the fair value hierarchy
- see note 18,

Peter Seed 1td used a discounted cash flow valuation model as there was an absence of sales of sunidar
properties and this is industry practice, This discounted cash flow valuation was based on Tuture forecast
income and expenditure for the aeronautical and non-aaronautical assets. The land held for futuse
development was valued separately at $14m and later added 1o the discounted cash flow value

This is Tevel 3 on the fair \alue hierarchy - %ee note 18.

Due to the impact of COVID-19 on the Group and the uncertainty that exists around the timeframe for racovery
of the aviation sector, the sensitivity of the discounted cash flow valuation tothe key variables of passenger
numbers and WACC was calculated With all other vanables held constant, the impact of these changes is;
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RANGE IMPALCT ON VALUE
Risaaraor -853m 10 +54.6m
. vbl\:mt;‘ low-6% to high+38% Ihe passenger ralated sensitivity range is not
symmetrical as based on specific passenger forecasts.
WALC 0.5% w +05% +52.2m to -$09m

Additions subsequent to the revaluation are carmied at cost,

As shown In the Statement of Changes in Equity there was an additional depreciation charge of 5494 056 (2019

$344,188) 45 a result of the prior year revaluation of the Airpont Infrastructure & Buildings assets.

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Land & Land Business Park  Capital Work Total
Improvements  Infrastructure & Buildings in Progress
AT 30 JUNE 2019
Cost 2,977,203 2875214 145,402 5.997 819
Accumulated depreciation 262 506 1,358,994 . 1621500
and Impairment
2,714,697 1,516,220 145,402 4,376,319
Opening net book value 2,714 697 1516220 145,402 4376319
Additions 48,101 48,101
Desposals -
Depreciation 33619 126595 160,214
Prior Penod Impaiment Reversal 696,400 696 400
CLOSING NET BOOK VALUE 2,729,179 2,086,025 145,402 4,960,606
AT 30 |JUNE 2020
Cost 2,699,688 3,000,830 145,402 6045920
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment 170,509 914806 - 1.085 315
2,729,179 2,086,025 145,602 4,960,606

The Group is developing a business park complex on the surplus airfield land. The development commenced
in 2013, The mitial tenant of the business park has prepaid its rentals for the 21-year term of the lease
This income i5 being recognised over the term of the lease

As at 30 June 2020 the Group has considered whether any new indicators of impamment exist or whether
there was sufficient evidence to support the reversal of previous impairments, The recoverable amount
of the land has been considered separately for the developed and the undeveloped land components.

The recoverable amount of the developed land has been calculated by undertaking o lease capitalisation
aiculation on the net fease income from existing tenants, The recoverable amount of the prepaid lease
has been walculated by undertaking a discounted cash flow calculation based on the lease income for

the remamder of the izase =rm.

The recoverable amount of the undeveloped land has been valued by a third party valuation expert,
Telfer Young Ltd, as at 30 June 2020, hased on a value per square metre derived from knowledge of reent

market transactions,

When the estimated walue of the developed land and the valuation of the undeveloped fand is combined,
the recoverable value is estimated to be SB4m. The asset has not been revalued to reflect this value due
1o the economic uncertainty as a result of COVID-19, however, the previous impairment of 596,400 was

reversed as at 30 June 2020,
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9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019

$ $

Accounts Recewable 396,909 503971
Provision for doubtful debts (15,951) -
Prepayments 287,796 261933
GST Recewabie 79,423 269989
748,178 1,035,893

Management have assessed the impact of COVID-19 on all aspects of the balance sheet. Specifically the
carrying value of recevabies was considered in light of rent relief sought by tenants and expected financial
difficulties of customers, Provissaning reflects management's best edimate of the impact based on infocmation
avallable at the time of peepanng these financial statements. There has been no material impact on

recesvables

10. EQUITY

2020 2019
$ $
Shares on issue
Drdinary shares 1004 13,789,155 13,789,155
Revaluation Reserve 11065081 11420801

All shares have equal voting nghts and share equally in divdends and surpluses on winding up. All shares
are fully paid and have no par vatue. No dividend was declared or paid dunng the 2020 finanoal year

2019: 557569 per share)

The revaluation reserve anses on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment. When revalued property,
plant and equipment is sold, the partion of the revaluation reserve that relates to that asset is transferred

directly to retained eamings.

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 2019

3 $

General - Trade 412,543 420,943
- Capital Expendiure 464 366 1336642
Rentals in Advance B84 286 89,334
Income Tax Payable 35,320 245733
996514 2,092,652

Rentals in advance due beyond 12 months totals $1,011,549 (2019

151,096,022
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12. BORROWINGS

The Group has a flexible facility up to 51.5m, (2019; up to SL5m), and a term facility of 519.5m (2019, S14.5m)
as at 30 June 2020, avadable from the ANZ Bank. At balance date the term facility was drawn down to 516,9m

{2019 510,7m) and the Flexible Facility was drawn down to 51,296,337 (2019; 5375,738)

The average interest rate on the term facility was 2.56% p.a (2019 3.27% pa). The tern facility matures

on 30 November 2021 The current interest rate on the Flexi Facility 15 4.39% (2019 489%). The Flea Facility

matures on 30 November 2021, The faalities are secured by & General Secunty Agreement.

At balance date the Group was in breach of the leverage covenant as per the facility agreement with the ANZ
Bank, The Group southt & walver from the ANZ Bank for the impending covenant breach in Apnl 2020, Such
walver was contingent upon shareholder support in the form of shareholder loans, which were finalised
subsequent to balance date on 30 July 2020, On 27 August 2020 the ANZ Bank ssued written confirmation of

a leverage covenant waiver as at 30 june 2020 and continued access to faclives until expery at November 2021.

13. PROVISION FOR RETENTIONS PAYABLE

Various subcontractors engaged on the Termimal Expansion Progect are subject 1o retention clauses within ther

construction contracts, Retentions are held in trust by the Group until such bime as It IS appropriate to release

them Le. either upon practical completion of the works or at the end of the defects Lability penod.

2020 2019
$ $
Provision at the Start of the Year 37,520 -
Increase/(decrease) to the Provision dunng the yesr 116,451 37,520
Use of the Provision dunng the year - -
PROVISION AT THE END OF THE YEAR 153971 37520
2020 2019
$ 5
a) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Right of Use Assets
Land 48,890
Vehicies (Fire Appliance) 371,620
420510
Lease Liabilities related to leases are split batween current and non-current
Current 105,181
Non-current 315,329 =
420,510
Additions 10 the nght-of-use assets during the 2020 financial year were $420,510.
b) Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Depreciation charge on Right-of-Use Assets
Right-of-Use Assets
Land
Interest expense 34,333
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15. COMMITMENTS

OPERATING COMMITMENTS

As a1 30 June 2019 the Group had 2.5 yeass remaiming of a five-year contract with a prowider of rescue firg,
grounds maintenance and sequrity semvices at $799,000 per annum. This contract ran until 31 December 2021,
but the contract was terminated 4t 30 June 2020 and the Group has employed the required staff and leased
the fire appliance. The lease is included in lease liabilites in note 4.

The Group has a ledse agreement 1o lease land as part of the runway extension for 4 term of 35 years expiring
on 30 April 2045 with ongoing rights of renewal. The lease commitment at 30 June 2019 was $897.000. This is
now recorded as a lease Liability under NZ IFRS 16 Leases. Due 10 the perpetual nature of the lease, the lease
lisbility is calculated as 548,890,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2020 the Group 1s contractually committed 1o capital expenditure totalling 56,625 217 with
$6,593,038 of this relating to the Terminal Expansion Project and the balance associated with general business.
The capacity to meet these commitments was provided by the Shareholder Loan Faclity, dated 10 july 2020,
Refer Note 19 - Events Subsaquent to Balance Date,

In the prios year at 30 June 2019 the Group was contractually committed 1o capital expenditure totalling
$9,789 229 with $9,061 395 of this refating to the Terminal Expansion Project and the balance associated
with master plan and car park development projects.

For further infarmation on the Terminal Expansion Project refer to the Chair's and Chief Executive’s repart.

16. CONTINGENCIES

There are no known contingent babilities (7019: Nil).

17. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Hawke’s Bay Airport Ld 1s owned by Napier City Council, Hastings District Council and the Crown. The Group
enters into numerous transactions with government departments, Crown entites, State-owned anterpnses
and other entities controlled by the Grown, and pays rates 1o the Napier City Council

These transactions are not separately disclosed when they:
- are conducted on an am's fength basis
- result from the normal dealings of the parties, and

- meet the definition of related-party transactions only because of the relationship between the parties baing
subject to common control or significant influence by the Crown

The Group has entered into a Shareholder Loan Facility as at 10 July 2020, Refer Note 2 - Going Concern
and note 19- Events Subsequent to Balance Date.

Hawka's Bay Airport Limited incorporated a 100% owned subsidiary, Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limsted
on 15 March 2019

Hawka's Bay Airport Construction Limited is the company that contracts 1o Hawke's Bay Airport Limeed
to undertake the construction management of the Airport Expansion Project.

All transactions between Hawke's Bay Airport Limited and Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limited
are eliminated on consphdation so there are no related-party transactions to disclose at Group level.

Amounts paid to key management personnel (Chiref Executive, Chief Financial Officer and the Directors)
during the year were $566,71 (2019: 5678 247)
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is party to financial instruments as part of its normal day to day operations. The main financial
Instruments are:

- tash and cash equivalents

- accounts receivable

- trade payables

- borrowings.

The Group has no off balance sheet financal instruments.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All finanoal assets and finanoai biabilites camying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value
The fair value estimates were determined by the following methodologies and assumptions

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS The reported amounts approximate fair value

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES: The reported amount approximates fair value because thoy are assessed

for impamment and all amounts are recervabie within three months of balance date

TRADE PAYABLES: The reported amount appreximates fair value bacause they are payabie in the short term.
BORROWINGS: The reported amounts approximate fair value because they are at market interest rates.
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

Assets and liatalities are recorded at fair value are valued according to the fair value hierarchy as follows:

LEVEL1

Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

LEVEL2

Inputs rather than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, a5 pnces) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

LEVEL 3

Inputs for the asset or liabdity that are not based on obsenvable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

SHAREHOLDER LOAN

On 10 July 2020, the Group entered into agreement with the shareholders for a shareholder loan totalling
9m (Crown $4.5m NCC S2.34m, HDC §216m) to enable completion of the Terminal Expansion Project

and ensure the Group's working capital requirements can be met throughout the recovery penod.

BANKING COVENANTS

On 27 August 2020 the Group received written confirmation from the ANZ Bank that it waives the breach

of the leverage covenant by the Group as at 30 June 2020 and that musting debt facilities remain available
to the Group to support Terminal Expansion Project expenditure and operational working capital until expiry
of the facilities in November 2021

{2019 Jetstar announced it would be ceasing its turboprop service between Hawka's Bay and Auckland
after the release of the 2019 financial statements. The estimated impact on the net book value of Property,
Plant and Equipment was a potential decrease of $0.95m to $36m)
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INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE READERS OF HAWKE'S BAY AIRPORT LIMITED'S GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The Auditor-Genel s the auditor of Hawke's Bay
Airport Limited group {the Group). The Auditor-General
has appainted me, Philip Pinckney, using the staff and
resowces of Baker Tily Staples Rodway Audit Limuted
to carry out the audit of the financial statements

and the performance information of the Group

on his behalf

DPINION

e hawe audited

+ the financil statements of the Group on pages 34 to
51, that compnse the statement of financal position
as at 30 June 2000, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that
date and the notes to the hinancal statements that
include accounting policses and other explanatory
infoemation and

the performance information of the Group on
page B
In our opaion;
+ the financel statements of the Group on
pages 34 to 51
present farty, in all matenal respects:
- its financial position as at 30 June 2020; and

- its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended: and

comply with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand in accordance with
New Zealand equivalents to International
Anancsal Reporting Standards Reduced
Desclosure Regime; and

« the performance information of the Group on
page 3 presents fairly, in all matenal respects,
the Group's actuat performance compared
aganst the performance targets and othey
measures by which performance was judged
in relation to the Group's objectives, for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

Our audit was completed on 21 September 2020
This 15 the date at which our opimeon 15 expressed

The basis for our opinion s expiained below

In addtion, we outline the responsibilities of the
Board of Directors and our responsitsities relating
to the financial Satements and the performance
nformation, we comment on other information,
and we explain out independence.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

Without modifyng cur opinion, we draw attention to
the disdosures about the mpact of COVID-19 on the
Group as set out n note 110 the financial Statements

BASIS FOR OUR OPINION

e camed out our audn In accordance with the
Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which
ncorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards
and the international Stanidasds on Auditing

(New Zealand) ssued by the New Zealand Audting
and Assurance Standards Boardd, Our responsihilities
undes those standards are further desaribad in the
Responsshilities of the audor section of our report.
We have fulfiled owr responsbilities m accordance
with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
& sufficient and appropnate to provide a basts for owr
audst opinon,
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

The Board of Dyrectors is responsible on behalf

of the Group for prepaning financial statements
and performance mformation that ae fairly
presented and that comply with genemily accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand,

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for such intemat
controd as & determenes is necessary to enable it

10 prepare financial statements and performance
information that are free from material messtatement,
whether due to fraud or ermc

In prepaning the financid statements and the
performance information, the Board of Directors 15
responsible, on behalf of the company for assesang
the company’s abslity to continue as a 3oing

concern. The Board of Directors 18 also responsible
for discdiosing as applicable, matters related to

going concemn and using the going concem basis of
accounting untess there is an intention to ligusdate
the Group O to cease operations, of there is no
realistic altemnative but to do sa

The Board of Directors’ responshilties anse from
the Local Government Act 2002,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITOR

FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

Our otyectives are 1o obtam easonable assurance
about whether the financal statements and the
performance nformation, as a whole, are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or ermr, and to issue an awdiitor’s report that includes
Our opinion

@ bakertilly

STAPLES RODWAY

Reasonable assurance is a hieh level of assumnce,
but it = not a guarantee that an audit carried ot

in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing
Standards will alwans detect @ matenal misstatement
when it exists. Misstaterments are differences or
omissions of amounts of disclosures, and can anse
from fraud or eror Misstatements are considerad
matenal i individually, of in the ageregate, they could
reasonably be expected to mfluence the deasion

of readers taken on the hasis of these financial
statements and the performance mformation.

We did not evaluate the secunty and controls over
the electrony publication of the financial statements
and the performance information,

As part of an audit in accordance with the
Auditor-General's Audiing Standards, we exerase
pofessional judgement and maintan professonal
scepticsm throughout the audit, Also!

+ We identify and assess the risks of materia
misstatement of the financal statements and
the performance information, whether due
1o fraud or error, design and perform andit
procedures responsive 1o those nsks, and obtain
audit evidence thit 15 suffident and appropriate
10 provide & basts for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a matetial messtatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgary,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, of the
override of the internal control.

= We obtain an understanding of intemal
control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropnate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opimon on the effectivensss
of the Group's internal control
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+ We enaluate the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board of Directors,

+ We evaluate the appropnateness of the repornted

performance information within the company’s
framework for reporting performance.

+ We conclude on the appropriateness of the

use of the going concern basis of accounting

by the Board of Directors and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal
ancertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doulbt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a matenal uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
repor to the related disclosures in the financal
statements and the perfarmance information or,
1f such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group 1o cease 10 continue as a going
concern.

+ We evaluate the oversll presentation, structure

and content of the financial statements

and the performance information, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements and the performance information
represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves f3ir presentation.

We obtain sufficient appropnate audit evidence
regarding the hnanoal statements and the
performance information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express

@ bakertilly

STAPLES RODWAY

an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated performance
information, We are respensible for the direction,
supenvision and the performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our

audnt opinion

We communicate wih the Board of Directors
regarding among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
ncluding any significant defioences in mtemal
control that we (dentify in our audit

Our responsbulites anse from the Public Audit
At 2001,

INDEPENDENCE

We are mdependent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements of the Auditor-
Geneval's Auditing Standards, which Incorporate the
independence requirements of Professional and
Ethical Standard 1: Internabonal Code of Ethics for
Assurance Procttioners ssued by the New Zealand
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

Other than the audit, we have no refationship with,
of interests in, the Group.

1% (7\/\9:,

PHILIP PINCKNEY

Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audst Limited
On behaif of the Auditor-Generml Hastings,
New Zealand
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